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Ownership of Property (Check as many boxes as apply)

____ private

___ public-local
___public-State
_x_public-Federal

Category of Property (Check only one box)
___ building(s)
_x_ district
___ site
__structure
____object

Number of Resources within Property

Contributing Noncontributing

_195_ __6__ buildings
_0 __3_ sites
1 _ 0 structures
_0 __2 objects
196 _11__ Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National
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Name of related multiple property listing (Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

N/A

Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)

Cat: DEFENSE Sub: Military Facility
DOMESTIC Institutional Housing
EDUCATION School, Research Facility
HEALTH CARE Hospital
RECREATION AND CULTURE_ Theater, Sports Facility
SOCIAL Clubhouse
GOVERNMENT Post Office, Public Works
COMMERCE/TRADE Warehouse

Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions)

Cat: DEFENSE Sub: Military Facility
DOMESTIC Institutional Housing
EDUCATION School
RECREATION AND CULTURE _ Theater, Sports Facility
SOCIAL Clubhouse
GOVERNMENT Post Office

COMMERCE/TRADE Warehouse




Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)
_Colonial Revival
_Bungalow/Craiftsman

Materials (Enter categories from instructions)
foundation CONCRETE: lightweight, poured
walls BRICK

___WOOD
roof __SLATE: asphalt shingle
other SANDSTONE, WOCD

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation
sheets.)

Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in one or more criteria Considerations (Mark "X* in all the boxes that
boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for National apply.)
Register listing) o .

A owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes.

X A Property is associated with events that have made a sigmificant
- coNErbition to the broad patterns of our history. s _ removed from 1ts griginal lucation.
a birthplace or a grave.

3 cemetery.
a reconstructed building. object. or struCture.

8 Progerty 15 assocrated with the lives of persons significant n our —_—
past.

RN Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period,
or method of construction or represents the work of a master. or .
passesses m?h artistic values. or re?resents a ﬂ]gm_ﬁcant and
distrngurshable entity whose components lack individual distinction. _ a commemorative property.
Sroperty nas yielded or 15 likely to yreld information 1mportant 1n . 1ess than S0 years of age or achieved sigmificance within the past 50
- preglstory or mstory. years.
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Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)
_MILITARY
_COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT_
_ARCHITECTURE
_LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Period of Significance 1917-1941

Significant Dates 1928
1935



Significant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiiiation N/A

Architect/Builder _Washington District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers_
William I Deming (Abbot Hall, Williams Hall, and Thayer Hall)

Narrative Si:atement of Significance (Explain the significance of the property on
one or more continuation sheets.)
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Previous documentation on file (NPS) Primary Location of Additional Data
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designated a National Historic Landmark University
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Acreage of Property _ca. 200 acres

UTM Referonces
{Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
1 18 314140 4284560 2 18 314680 4285040
3 18 31438B0 4284120 4 18 313960 4283720
___ See continuatiocn sheet.
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Description

The Fort Belvoir Historic District contains the administrative and visusi core of the 19308 Army Corps of Enginesrs Training
Center campus, 38 well as the principsl residentiai structures built to house eniisted men, NCOS, officers and senior officers. The
Fort Belvoir Nistoric District contains a group of twmporary, frame, otficers' housing units erscted in the 19208, as well a9 & row of
seven nearly identical wood-frame warehouses, buitt in 1917, the cldest standing structures on the post. The layout of the district
follows the military post plarning objectives prevalent in the late 19208 and 19308 (urse 1528). Whereas the post is like & “great
social orgsnism, " its development should follow certain “laws,* including Unity, Consonance in Design, Natural Beasuty, dalance and

Radiation,

Large, imposing, brick Coionial Revival-styie buildings embeilished with limestone porticos snd keystones snd set within 2
formai, rectilinear street plam, characterize the centrsl campus. The modest and stately Colonial Revivai-style brick “ouses, which
are one-and-orne half or two-story, single or double, are srranged in rectilinear and curvitirwar pstterrs, defining :he principel
resigdential areas which surround it. The consistent use of the Colonial Revival style, rendered in red brick with | imestons details,
crestes the srchitectursl charscter that defines the 1930s comstruction of permenent asdministrative and residential factlities to house
the U.5. Army Corps of Engineers at Fort Belvoir,

The administrative and visual core of the installstion is focused on the Long Parade Ground, which {s surrounded by Colonial
Revivai-style buildings., The stately, morumental quality of the Colonial Revival-styie buildings that define the persde ground area
ard housa the principal administrative and instructional facilities at Fort Belvoir; the NCO housing area imwsdiately adjacent to the
Long Parade Ground, which is associated chronologicaily with the development of the central post in the 1930s and visusily with the
central post's formal, symmetrical plan; the 1920s officers' housing to the east of the parede ground, which dates to the post's

development after wortd War I; and the senior officers' housing ares (ca. 1934).

The senior ofticers' housing ares is situated st the southeastern tip of the s neck of land stretching out into the Potomec
River. The irreguisr topography of the bluffs inspired & curvilinesr plen of considersble besuty, reminigcent of the finest gerden
suburbs constructed at the time § civilian sattings. Planners took advantsge of the topography snd vegetation to provide exceilent
architectursl orientation of these quarters. As consistent with the proper planning of Army posts, tha streats follow the natursl
contour of the ground, in order 1o reduce building costs as well as to present plessing perspectives, while st the same time, meeting
the purely local nesds for which they were intended (Nurse 1928: 18). This 1930s development stands in substantial contrast to ;ho
formai, rectilinear design of the core af the post although the dwellings retain the Colonisi Revival style end brick coratruction
characteristic of the core of the installation.

The senior officars' housing ares consists of fifty-nine substantial, elegant, two-snd-one-half story brick Colonial lovivqt-
style dwellings which (ine a long, winding, parkway-iike drive. These cwellings are of a basic Colonial Revival form, scme with
individual varistions as described below, The mein roadkay, Seivoir Orive, terminates at the Army Materisl Commandant's Quarters
(Building #1), appropristely sited on a biuff overicoking the Potomec. Woodlswn and Mason Drives wind sast, encircling s wooded common
ares and terminating at the Officers' Club, which is situated on & dramatic promontory overlooking the river. The Army Materiel
Commandant's Quarters and the Cfficers' Club, which occupy the two highest points in the ares, provide focus to the s@rb-hko,
resicentiai plan. The gensrcus provision of open space, tha preservation of woodland behind the houses, and the presence of vistas over
the Potomac Aiver conbine to treate » sense of privacy, seclusion, and separstion from the rest of the post. Ruins ot the deivoir
dansion, seat of Col. William Feirfax, cousin and tand-asgent to Lord Fairfax, lay nesrty., The senior officers' housing srea derives
coherence fram its uniform srchitectursl layout and cherscter, as well as from the continuity of its distinctive landecape design, which
both conforms to the terrain and embodies the bwst of contusporary lLandscape planning.

Both the 19308 WD and officers’ hosing units were costructed from standardized plans designed in the Colonisl Revival style.
The repetition of similsr and identical forms, designed in the same style and employing uniform construction meterials, creates a sinse
of unity among the structures thet represent the 1930s construction period and are inciuded in the Fort Belvoir Wistorie District.

An imventory with descriptions of structures included in the Fort Belvoir Wistorie Oistrict is provided below, An sbbrevisted

versian of the list is attached to this nominatian. Suildings ere listed by building nusber snd grouped by type; varistions within one
building type are detailed in the text.

Senior Officars' Housing
' : ¢1-Contributing.). Built in 1935, the Commanding Officer's house is constructed

A 1 il G
of common bond brick articulated by regular bended brick quoins over a brick foundstion. [t has a rectanguisr, two-and-one-half
story mein block with s one-snd-one-half story garsge wing to the eest. The seven-bey principsi facade contains a three-bay,
pedimented, central pavilion with an oval oculus in the pediment. This side-gable house has 8 siaste roof, gable e returns,
interior end chimneys, two gabled dormers on the front siope, and three to the resr, and two low gabled dormers on each slope of the
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garage wing. A front doorwsy, iocated in the center of the pavilion, has & molded architrave surrounding sidelights and a pair of
three-panel, double wooden doors. A side entrance with s wooden door with giszed upper pene and solid lower panel is Located on the
€887 gabie end near the northeast corner. Three wooden French doors open on the rear porch. All windows are six-over-six double-
hung with timestone sills. A smell, flat-roof front entry portico is supported by peired Tuscan colums, with a Chiness-style
balustrade on the roof. A two-tiered porch extends acraoss the rear of the main block. [t flat roof is topped by s wooden
calustrade and supported by square, paneled, wooden columms. A smeil, shed-roofed entry porch supported Dy sgquare columns is
iocated over the side door. The house is built on a center hail plan. Extensive, English-style gardens on its side snd resr lead
down to the Dluffs above the Potomec River.

ildi - . i i ' ing: (58-Contributing), The senior officer's house form wnether messuring 40! by 27¢
or 40! by 28' consists of s common bond-brick main block on & brick foundation with a centers hall plan. It is two-and-one-half
stories with a qable roof, two to three dormer windows, and two interier end chimpeys. The main block is flanked by two side gable
wings one of which is a garsge and the other is either a one or tow story enclosed side porch. Other varistions are the door
surrounds: one type is a recessed, paneled entry with portico supported by Tuscan-styis columns, with trisngular pediment; the
other is wooden pilasters with an arched recessed pediment. Ail the houses face » park-iike sres,

t (1-Comtributing), This transformer, built in 1933, is a one-story, ome-bay, rectangular, side-gable,
brick building and services Family Housimg #7 and 8.

Building #13A. Tennis Courts: (i-woncontributing). Built in 1950,

jidi ¢t (1-Contributing). This transformer, built in 1935, is a one-story, one-bay, rectangular, side-gable,
brick building and services Family Housing #16 ard 17.

ildi i : (1-Contributingy. Built in 1934 as the Officers' Open Mess, this building presently serves as the
Officers’ Club. A seven-part, sysmetrical, Georgian Revival-style composition arranged in a broad crescent, this Flemish bond brick
structure with scored joints sits on 4 brick foundation, The rectanguiar, two-snd-one-half staory buiilding contsins & nine-bay
center block which messures 72° by 45', two tow-story, four-bay wings that messure 34} by 33' and two two-story, ten-bay flankers
that messure 72' by 34'. A large, flat-roofed sddition is present on the rear facade. The side-gable main block, wirgs, and
flankers have slate roofs with molded cornices and interior end chimneys. Seven gabled dormers sit atop the mein block. The main
block sports gable-end returns and the wings display pediment molding across their gsble ends. The main entrance, located !n the
centrat bay of the main block, contains four three-penel doors surrounded by a molded architrave and entsblature. Other msjor
doorways are placed at the third and eighth bays of the flankers. A two-story, flat-roofed portico featuring square paneled
columns, a detailed sntablature, snd a Chinese fence bslustrace extends scross the facade of the main block. Twa richly decorated
period rocms with besmed ceilings and large firepiaces remsin on the interior. A firesback from the Belvoir Mansion hangs sbove the
fireplace in the first-floor lounge. [n terms of its overall architectursi character as well as the direct reference it makes to
nistorical stytes snd with local architectural and historical traditions., with its two-story, flat-rocted portico and plethora of
gabled dormers, MacKenzie Wall mekes reference to nearby Mount Vernon, estsbtishing a visusl and historical connection between the
Coloniat Revival-styie structures of Fort Belvoir and the great Virginia piantation houses that graced the upper Potomec/Potomsc
River Valley in the eighteenth snd nineteenth centuries. A 1974 addition was make to the Bachelor's Officer’'s Quarters (30Q).

M : (1-Contributing). This transformer, built in 1943, is & one-story, one-bay rectangular, side-gabie,
oricx builiding.
I : (1-Contributing). This transformer, built in 1935 is a one-story, one-bay, aquare, front-gable, Drick

2uilding and services Family Housing quarters #51.

: : (1-Contributing). Built in 1935, this ane-story, three-bay, side-gable, L-plan bungalow is the

only example of this housing type on the post. Comstructed of stretcher bord brick, this house has an enciosed porch, largk gable |

an interior chimmey, and flat arch lintels. The entry porch on the north gebie and is a modern sadition.

Suilding #68, Qfficers' Wousing: (1-Contributing). Built in 1935, this officer's housing unit is the only example of this housing
type on the post. The Coloniai Revivai-style officers' quarters is a two-story, three-bey, side-geble building constructed of
common bond brick with gable end returns, sn imposed secondery side-geble with end returns, and one-quarter round windows. Other

architectural detsils include exterior end chimneys, » pedimented entry porch with Ooric columns and pilssters, an attached one-
STOry Sun room on the southern gable end, flat arched aver first- and second=4£ory windows, and & singie-story rear entry porch.

Double wirdows grace the front amd rear sievations.

duilding #68A, Transformer Station: (1-Nomcomtributing). Built in 1949, this one-story brick building services Building #68.
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duilding #73, Detached Garpqe: (1-Noncomtributing). Buitt in 1949,
NCO Housing

ildi - - -14%: (60-Contributing). Built in 1930-31 and in 1934, these one-snd-one-nalf
story, three-bay, side-gasble, cosmon bond brick Colonial Revival-style houses with gabled dormers, six-paneled woodsn front entry
door with glass upper panets, and four-{ight transom sre arranged in a formai Bess Arts plen that extends westusrd from the persde
ground. Notable for enriched entries, such a latticework and column supports, and spacious grounds, they maintsin the stylistic,
formal character of the imposing administrative buildings surrounding the parsde ground snd extand the formel pian that
characteriles the post's centrat ares.

duilding #110A, Transformer: (1-Contributing). This transformer, built in 1935, services qusrters #110.

Suilding ¥120A, Tranaformer: (1-Contributing). This transformer, built in 1935, services quarters #120 snd #1122,
Juilding ¥1ISA, Transformer: (1-Comtributing). This transformer, built in 1935, services quarters #1356 and 138,

Suildipg #137A, Tra sformer: (1-Contributing)., This tramsformer, built in 1935, services quarters #157.

Buildings #166-171: (6-Contributing). Built in 1939, this row of identical NCO family housing units Lacks the carefully planned
tnvironment common in other nesrby housing areas. The residences are substantial, two-story, brick Coloriai Revival-style double
houses that are consistent in their use of the post's pervasive Colonial Revival idiom and solid brick construction.

- -

Buiidinas #173-178, Detached Garsges: (4-Contributing). These identicsl one-story, two-bay, side-gable, shingled brick garsges
With six-over-six double-hung windows on esch side Delong to the NCO family housing on Middleton Rosd (buildings #146-171) and were
Duilt in 1940,

: Built in 1939, the former NCO Club is the central focus of the Besux Arts plan of the NCO housing

duilding #184: (1-Contributing}.
area west of the parade ground. This long, one-story, brick Colonisi Revival building with gable roof snd corbeled brick cornice,

Taintains the plan of the central ares and the style of the surrounding buildings.

duilding #1383, yater Storage Tank: (1-Contributiag). This round, metal water storsge tank with saucer-shaped bottom snd conical
Top was buitt in 1918, The tank is supported by five steel Legs with lattice bracing arxd reinforced with disgonal tis rods and
cross struts. The legs stand on concrete footings. Large water pipes extend form the center of the tank bottom to the ground.

iu.LLd.Lm_l.!S_l (1-Contributing). The Fire Station/Facility Engineer fecility, which was built in 1934, is » two-story, four-bay,
nip-roofed buiiding with a slate-covered roof and s central pedimented pavilion. Other architesturai festures include two arched
fire engine doors, modillions along the pesk of the pediment, s molded wood cornice and arched wood door surround with a fanlight,

ang double three-paneled wooden doors. A one-story, rectangular rear addition measures 32' by 63!.
Long Parsde Ground

] : (2-Contributing). Identicsl two-snd-one-hslf story, brick Colonial Revivai-style
Wildings with monumental |imestone porticos, buildings #201 snd 202 were built to serve ss a 111-men capecity barrecks in 1928,
This pair of buildings detines the western bourdary of the Long Parade Ground, meintsins the architectursl character and scale of
Ine structures surrounding the parsde ground through the use of the Colonial Revival style and of brick snd limestone construction
materials, and serves as a frontispiece for the compound of brick Colonial Revival barracks to their rear, Building #210 is
presently used for administrative offices and building #202 houses the Defense Systems Management College.

duildings #203-21%: (11-Contributing). Built in 1928, this group of very similar two-snd-one-half story, brick buildings serves s
Serracks. Buildings #204-205, 207, ang 209 sre used for gerersl imstruction. variations on the basic center hall pian with cross
hail revolve around the trestmant of the twa-level, concrete porches which run across the rear facades. Although not visusily
essential to the Long Parsde Ground, this group of berrscks buildings that surround the parade ground. Arranged in a formel,
rectilinesr plan which extends the symmetry of the psrade ground snd its surrounding building, the configuretion as well as the

architectural character of these barracks ¢ontinues the balanced cosposition and singulsr design idiom of the post's central plan.

Swilding #21%6, Flagler Hall: (!-Contributing}. Built in 1932, this two-and-one-half story, brick Colonisl Revival-style building
with monumental |imestons portico, defines the southern terminus of the parsde ground. Originally the 33-bed post hospital, and st

one time the Post Mesdgquarters, this building is presently occupied by sdministrative oftices.
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#2154, Flagpolg: (1-Noncontributimg). Built in 1978.

uilding #217: (1-Contributing). This cetached garage, built in 1932, is & one-story, two-bay building with hip-roof covered with
slata and constructed of brick with 4 masonry foundation. The garage is located behind Flegler Hall (Building #216). The
fenestration consists of two wooden overhesd garsge doors and four wood-frame six-over-six double-hung windows, which are now
bricked over.

iR, Morument o the Cold War Desd: ()-Noncontributimg). Buiilt in 1968.

:+ (1-Contributing). This one-ard-one-half story brick building is composed of

two gambrel-roofed bDlocks Linkea by a one-snd-one half story, frame connector. Built in 1931 to house & thearsr and & gyWnasium,
the building is set back forw the parade ground with its principal facade oriented toward the residential ares of the post, with
«hich it is functionally associated. The crestion of this unususl and bipartite building form illustrates a successful attempt to
adapt special function building to the motifs of the prevalent Colonial Revival style and reflects the attention to plaming and
unified design that is charscteristic of Fort Belveir's centrai core.

uildipg #2248, Sattalion Hescusrtersy: (!1-dMoncontributing). Built in 1957,
dufldipg #5-231, Consglidated Mesx #1: (1-Noncontributing). Built in 1968,
Suilding #23%, Gattalion HescOuarters: (1!-Wencontributing). Built in 1965,
#245, Basebatl Field: (1-Noncontributing). Built in 1950,

i . . !2!! : . i EI !I:EDII El llﬁinli (1-|loncontributini)- guilt in 1951,

fuilding #2534, Main Posg Qfficg: (1-Contributing). Built in 1935, the Main Post Office is & one-story brick structure with an
impasing projecting entry pavilion. Utilitarisn in form, it is enriched by fine brickwork and detailing that harmonizes with the
prevailing Colonial Revival style. [t is located on a major cross street near the Long Parsde Ground snd across from a row of brick
Colonial Revival-style barracks. Less formal than its neighbors, the post office exhibits solid design, harmonizing with the persde

ground building through its use of brick and {{mestone comstruction matsrials.

fuilding #257, Wil Hall: (1-Comtributing). Buflet in 1935, #ill Wall is s one-story, H-shaped, brick Colonial Revival-style
tuiiding with an octagonal cupols topped by a copper roof. Originelly designed as an elewsntary schoal, the building meintaina the
formal use of spece charscteristic of the central parade ground ares and suggests the range of commINity services provided by gha
Army. [n its position st the extreme scuthuest of the persde grourd sres sdjacent to the senior officers' housing, Rill Hall is
accessible to the NCO housing west of the parsde ground ss weii as to the officers' housing esst of the plr_ndo ground. The building
represents the transition between the public services provided to military dependents and the privacy associated with the
rasidential areas.

£xcnange was built in 1935. Set beck from the west side of the psrade ground with its entrance facing the Essayons Theater, its
styte and materisl are consistent with those of the parade ground building, although is mxch smsller. A formal pedimented peviiion
face the parasde ground but fta rear porch bears a stronger relationship to building #219 than to the mtll porticos of the
parade ground bufiding., Set beck from the persde ground, it is consistemt with the post's preveiling design from the formslity snd
monumentat ity of the central persde ground sres to the formal end smeller scale administrative and housing ares to the west. The
Suilding currently houses scministrative offices.

fwiiding #258: (1-Comtrivuting). This one-story, brick Colonial Revival-style building that was originally used as the Post

Buildings #2648 and 270, willisms and Thaver Malia: (2-Contributing). Identical two-story, brick Celonial Revival-style buildings
with recessed porticos, designed by Williasm [. Deming and built in 1935, these flankers complete the composition that defined the
eastern edge of the parade ground and forms the symbolic and geographic focus of the South Post. The buildings retain their
original doors snd much of the original interiors.

Building #269, Abbot Hall: (1-Contributing). An imposing exaspie of the Colonial Revivel style designed by Weshington, D.C.
architect william |. Deming and constructed in 1935, Abbot Hall forms the central element of the thres-part Pelladian composition
that inctudes the two flanking buildings, Willisms and Theyer Halis. Currently serving ss Post Hesdquerters, Abbot NHall is s two-
story brick building with o Buckingham slate roof, projecting pedimented |imestone portico, grand staircase, and @ carved shield in
the pediment. The building suffered o serious attic-fire in 1993 which required a totat roof recorstruction end interior
renovation. A $2 million dollar rehabilitation was completed in Novesber 1995. The entrance foyer, cross hoils and end stairwells
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were preserved in their criginai configuration. The exterior sppesrsance was retsined and restored.

{ldi : i : (1-Contributing). The Feirfax Chapel was built in 1941, The chapal is one-story with a front
gadle and an asphait shingied rocf. The squars steeple with a stesp pyramidai roof was buiid on the front gabie ridge of the
chapel. A gabled vestibule projects from the center of the front gable end. The doors are modern aluminum snd glass. The windows
in the chapel are varied with twelve-over-tueive on the long sides of the building, four-over-four at the end of the beys on the
long side and on either side of the doorwsy and six-over-six windows in the front gsble end pesk. The chapsl doss not reflect the
Colontal Revival style of the other buildings on the parade ground.

Camp Wumphreys Officers' Housing
z441: (6-Contributing). Cesigned by Captain A.A. Hockman, Quartermsster Corps (QMC), and built in 1920-21, this

i ldi : .
secies of low, one-story “temporary® houses employed a standardized penel-system method of cormtruction. They are good exampies of
the then-contemporary Craftsman style and festure integrated front entry porches with built-in side benches and central-gable front
facage, Their informel style is well suited to their atmosphare of the camp that predated the designation of Fort Belvoir as the

Army Enginesr Center, :

fuildingy #643-466: (41-Contributing). The one-story, five-bey, side-gsble, brick, identical detached garages built in 1940,
measure 20 by 51', and are part of the Jadwin Loop Housing complex end belong to buildings 8451-454.

FI498A, Baseball Figigd: (1-Noncontributimg). Built in 1955,

Suilding #500-50%: (4-Contributing). Built in 1934, these two-story, three-bey, side-gable buildings are presently used for
housingd. The brick housing reflects the srchitecture of the post throuph the Colonisl Revivei-style door surround snd fts four-
light transom, A one-story modern addition has been buitt on the side. Other architecturat fsatures are two gabled dormers and

ventilators in the gabie ends.
i t (1-Contributing). This one-ttory, one-bay, side geble, eight by eight, red brick trsnsforwer
vault was built in 1935,

Builging #1124: (1-Contributing). This one-story, two-bay gas station, built in 1934, measures spproximately 25' by 40'. .
Fenestration consists of a front entrance and eight-over-eight double-hung windows to the side and rear. Building meterials consist
af brick and cliapboard with an overhanging hipped roct and rear chimney.

Buildings #T1139-1145: (7-Contributing). This row of simost identical attached warshouses tuilt in 1917, the oldest standing
structures on the post, are one-story, five-bay structures with gable roofs coversd in ssphalt shingles and msasures ?47' by 65'
esch. The warehouses are supported by wood posts which rest on mesoncy footings. Fire walils on the rorth and south Rides separste
the tuildings. Farticle bosrd and tar paper has been placed over the original wood-frame structure. Five metal mtil,tora are
iacated at the ridge of esch roof. Five loading doors fece the railrosd tracks on the west side snd four on the sast uc_io of esch
wilding, The fenestration of these warehouses consists of six-over-six double-hung windows and lomg wooden six-panel fixed-sash
wINGCwWS .

fuilding #195Q: (1-Comtributing). This PX Administration building, built in 1934, ia now used for Ryder Tru:l:'rmtgll. Tho
ouilaing is 8 one-story, one-bay, side-gable, brick structure with a brick rear addition with 8 shed roof, one interior brick
chimey, and one metsi Cipe chianay. Matal grates cover the windows. The window configuration consists of three sets of six-psne
Windows with three sets of three-pene windows above and below the six-pene windows. ON the front facade are two doors, one of
modern aluminum end glass and one wood penel door with a five-light transom snd [talisnate scrolls supporting the averhang sbove the
door. Wasonry steps lesd to Doth doors. A Large wood-penel-and-glass door is located on the side of the resr addition,

: (1-Contributing). This one-story, one-bay, side gable, 9' by 11* rectangulsr red brick

H

tranaformer veult was built in 1935,

Buiidine #1154: (1-Contributing). Building #1156 presentiy houses sn electrical substation. The building, which is constructed of
orick, was built in 1935 ang is # ore-story, three-bay, side-gable structure with & shingled roof, and includes an interior chimney

and twelve-pant CASEENNT windows.

Suilding #1157: (1-Contributing). Pressntly used to houss s stanchy generator, this one-story L-shaped, threw-bay, hip-rooted
structure tuilt in 1929 is consistent with the brick comstruction of the other Colonial Revival-style buiidings on the post. The
main block measures 17 by 27' and the gabled ell messures 8' by 11¢, Entrences to the building inciude a central door on the main
black and one on the south side of the eli. The windows are sit-over-sin wood-frame.
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fuilding #1158: (1-Contributing). This one-and-one-half story, three-bay, side-gable, brick building built in 1935 is presentiy
Jsea for electrical storage, [t messures approximately 30' oy 20, Nas exposed Fafters and an overhesd garage door,

Statement of Significance

The Fort Belvoir Historic District illustrates the socisl, technological, and military developments at U.S. Army
installations in the yesrs betweent the worid wars. The formmiity and monumsntality of its architecture and site plan, and the
precipitation of its construction as a result of its designation as the officiai home of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in 1918,
attest to the military importance of the Corps of Enginesrs in & increasingly technological ers. The histaric district encampassas
the aaministrative, cermmonial, instructionai, and warehousing aress that reflect the post's primary military functions and wers
appropriate to its enhanced military importance, as weil as the residentisl and socisl sress necessary to the life of the post.

In 1922, the War Oepartment redesignated the post Fort Humphreys to signify its establishment as a permenent military
installation, The name change ves consistent with the decision of the Secretary of War to meke Fort Humphreys the “homm™ of the
Corps of Engineers (Fine and Remington 1972:44). The new mission 10 upgrade the post included the dqlitien of mumsrous Worid
war [ structures to make room for the buitding new permenent structures typicsl of military construction during the 1520s and 1930s.
Curing that decsde of construction, Fort NuRphreys was tramsforsed into & stately post, which was renamed fort lotvoir‘in 1935. The
surviving resoufces that reflect the earlier military occupation (1920s) of the post and those that repreient the massive
construction project of the 19308 are included in the Fort Belveir Wistorie District.

The Fort Beivoir Historfc District is eligible under Criterion A becsuse it is “sssociated with events that have meke a
significant contribution to the brosd patterns® of twentieth-century American military history. [t is slso eligible under Criterion
C because the buildings “embody the distinctive charscteristics® of the Colonial Revival style and because its design and layout
represent early efforts in suburben planning snd landscepe design. Below ere individusl statements for each criterion.

Criterion A

In 1912, the Corps of Engineers obtained 1,500 acres of what had been Belvoir, the eightesnth-century estate of Col.

Witliam Fairfax, cousin and land agent to Lord Fairfax. Since the end of the sighteenth century, the ares had been farmed in
In 1910, the District of Columbia

smailer tracts and had genereily experienced the rise and fall of local economic conditions. ;
acquired the property, intending to construct a reformatory on the site. Objections, particularly from Mount Vernon, which opposed
siting such a facility so closs to George Washington's historic plantation, ended these pisns. The property was transferred to the
War Department and subsequently turned over to the Corps of Engineers. The corps initislly used it as a summer camp and rifle range
‘or troops stationed at vashington Sarracks, the present Fort Lesley 4. Molair. The 1,500-scre tract known as Selvoir Plantation

became Camp Aumphreys in honor of General Andrew Atkinson Nusphreys.

The chenging demands of warfare and the urban growth of the sres surrounding .the Engineer School, then located st
wWashington Barracks in the Ofstrict of Columbia, crested a need for additional training grm.l'lmt Thc nearby Belvoir tract seemed
suited to fill the needs of the engineers. The challenging terrsin and its proximity to the existing school encoursged the var
Cepartment to seek the land for military purposes. In response to the War Department's request, Congress authorized the transfer of
the property in 1912, and on March 23, 1915, Compeny A, 1st Battalion of Engineers, became the first unit to report for duty st the
post. The other compenies rotated into the training srfea on a more or less regulsr basis prior to the outbreak of Worid War 1.

The entrance of the United States in World War | in April 1917 initiated a feverish burst of .;nyity st the Belivoir Tract.
[t seemed the ideal place to conduct the training of replecement troops and to expand the trlinim_of junior oﬂiccl_-l to lead the
newly-formed engineer units into the theater of operstions and combet. On December 23, 1917, the initisi construction of the camp
»as authorized. To more propariy reflect its role, the new casp was to be known ss Camp Humphreys, in honor of Brevat Major Genersl
Andrew Azkingon Wumphteys, who commanced the Third Division, Fifth Corps, of the Army of the Potomac and who Later served as the
Chief of Engineers from 1886 to 1879. Now renamed Camp A.A. Nusphreys, Selvoir becams the home of the Corps of Engineers in 1918,

The actusl construction of the camp begen on 14 Jenuary 1918, The general contractor for the camp, 7. F. Gormley, iof ]
washington, D.C., arrsnged for the materisis and civillan Labor necessary to ersct the 790 buildings the would provide housing for

19,934 man.,

At Belvoir, the Enginesr School performed the entire range of training that was necessary to "...prepars the junior
' A e Demolitions, smail arms, fisldcraft, and the

afficers of the Corps of Engineers for the active duties of their arm and corps..."
develogment of field fortifications were taught in the fisid, In addition, the physicsily demsnding work of esplecing pontoon
oridges was repeatedly practiced. This practical experience supplemented the textbooks and lectures that had become the standard

instructional fare of the curriculum.
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One of the most vital functions performed at Camp Humphreys was the operation of the Engineer Replacement and Training
Camp. Quring its cperation from May through December of 1918, more the 57,000 soldiers were trained for service with the U.S. Army
both averseas ard in the United States. Included in this total were nine divisional (Sth, 102rd, 210th, 215¢h, 217th, 218th, 219th
and 220th) and tiree non-divisional smaller organizations that were trained to perform such m’sgmns as forestry (logging and
sawmill operations), sesrchiight operations, car repair, railway construction, and gensrat sarvice.

The training of enlisted men was only one side of the persornel picture. The corps of Engineers needed officers at atl
levels 1o cops with the rapid expansion of the Army's ergineer forces. Although the Enginser School was suspended during the course
of the war, the Engineer Officer's Training Center was designed to produce junior officers frgn'thc met promising enlisted
saldiers, when tha school finaily closed in February 1919, more than 4,900 officers had participated in the course.

[n addition, at least on other major school was located a Camp Numphreys. lBeginning in April 1918, division gas officers
were selected form the Corps of Engineers. Through October 1918, the Army Gas School located st Camp Humphreys was: 4430 used a5 one
of the demobilization centars vhere entire units were sent to stend down and process their troops beck inte civilisn Life, More

than 14,000 men were demobilized at Camp Humphreys through the end of 1919,
wis moved form Washington

in October 1922, Camp Humphreys uas redesignated Fort Numphreys after the Enginesr's School
Garracks to the inc*allation. The Lats 19208 saw & boom in construction which would lest sbout a decade. The face of the post ues
changed to & permanent appesrance by the new Colonisl Revival red brick structures, which comprise the cnre of the inetailation.
This building boom occurred between conflicts, whan the threst of war was Not & concern. The name fort telvolr wes designated by

Genersl Orders Number | of the wWar Department on February 14, 1935,

The first Engineer Replacemsnt Training Centar (ERTC) was established st Fort Belvoir in March 1961, The ERTC was designed
to pravide the initisl training in military subjects that was necesssry for all engineer troops before unit training could begin.
Criginaily designed to accowmodate a twelve-week prograe of instruction, the ERTCs had to accoumdatc_tho curr?cuu.- to reflect ghc
need for training sgainst the need for troops., The course was a mere eight weeks long during the rapid expsnsion of engineer units

during 1942,

The curriculum offerad at Fort Beivoir was copied st the other two ERTCs, one at Fort Lmrd. Wood, Nilmi_, and Fho other
at Camp Abbott, Oregon, During the first two weeks, the soldier went through initial reception, receiving & regulation heircut and
a complete fssue of uniforms, rifle, bayonet, and gas mask. Treining emphasized :I:m use of_tho r!flo, physical ceﬂ!ithning, and
general military subjects at the expense of general engineering subjects such as field fortrffcnnqm. obluc_:ln, demol itions, and
general construction skills, [t was hoped that omce these men resched their units they would receive sufficient training in

engineering skills 10 enadle them to accomplish their missions,

Of all the innovations that the Engineer School and Fort Belvoir developed to sssist in the trlin_inc of soldfc:s,h a-;l:cill
2iways Do associated with the fort: The Military Obstacie Courss. To negotiate the course was an essential element of the

g L i ¢ o the 1 "iu test t“. course PIQUiM 1“ Hﬂivid.llll. t’l‘ COUrse was “id to have Y- °'d '""l' m‘t.' with
the men themse ves Bei AM s - :
i i -] ical ¢ ti L w, 4 &y .-.
* ny Ic“.' t“.' llk. th.t .lmt ' mv’ - - tim: .ﬂ h ving ARar .ICII sNses 0' ‘l h |l

able also to appreciste the situstions which arise when somecne miscalculates a dist
the creek.“

The shortage of qualified engineer officers was extreme during the early years of the war. Tha Troop l;:'l M“b‘:l.: c:;'
Jaruary 1942 indicated that more than 4,500 officers were needed beyond those already serving with the °°mi.l ¢ great
these officers would have to e commissioned through the Enginesr Officer Candidate School, located at Fort voir,

The need for additional officers had been recognized long before the war had sctually begun. The firu'clus starced
training at fort Belvoir on July 7, 1941, and gracusted sixty-saven of the ninety-seven that reported for training. By the time the
‘ast class graduated in 145, the Engineer Officer Candidate School commissioned more that 25,000 officers.

The expsrsion of Fort Belvoir during the war yesrs was dramatic. From July 1, 1940 through December 31, 1“51'00“-,::6‘"“
$27,130,000 was spent on new construction. This included facilities for 22,794 eniisted men, 1,548 officers and o 1, x
hospitat. [n sddition, more thet 300,000 square feet of covered storage area was available, along with almost one mil fon sm:ro
feet of outdoor storsge sress. The fort itself contained more that 7,573 acres snd hed en sdditional 143,312 acres aveilable for

training in the Shenendosh Nationai Park.

The Korean War again placed demands on the Engineer School and Fort Beiveir to turn out qualified enginesrs to suppore the
combat units of the Army. To meet the challenges of the Korean Wer, the Engineer Replacemsnt Training Centar u-:inu?md ~e ERITC
immedistely snd began training trocps for Kores. It continued in operation through Septesber of 1953. Ouring :' st I.-' t o
provided training to more than 30,783 enginesrs. In asddition, the Enginesr Officer Candidate School began its first classes

i
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September of 1951, and before closing its doors in July of 1954, hed cosmissioned 2,325 engineer officers.

while training engineers for combat was the mejor task of fort Belvoir during the 19508, the Army also recognized thet
aaditional training was necessary for senior officers charged with command resporsibilities st mejor instalistions. [n 1954, the
Command Management School was established at fort Balvoie to train afficears in good menegarial technigues, particulariy in the srea

of facilities management.

Until 1988, the U.S. Army Engineer Center at Fort Sslvoir was the hame of the Engineer Center and Training Command. Its
mein purpose was the operstion of the Enginser School. while positioned at Fort Belvoir, the Engineer School was composed of a2
number of organizstionatl units. The School Secretary provided the menagement of the school, and the Proponency Office provided
career guidance. The Directorate of Combat Developments formuiated, disseminsted, snd evsluated concepts, and provided deta for
tests and programs. The Directorats of Trsining and Doctrine was the program menager for all sngineer doctrine, training programs
and materials. The Directorate of Evaiuation and Standardization conducted internal and externai evaluastions of the sngineer
training to meet the changing needs of the agency. The training depsrtments of Military Engineering and conducted training in
maintenance and logistics for the engineers. Also, there wers a number of specialized units in operstion at the engineer school,

under the commend of “the Fourth Engineer Brigade

Since world war {1, it wes recognized that there was not encugh Land ot Beivoir to consolidate the sctivities of the
Enginesr School. The decisfon was mmde in the mid-1980s to move the Engineer School to Fort Leonard Wood, Missouri. This
relocation, which officialiy octurred on June, 1, 1988, ended the T6-year sssociation between the post and the Engineer School.
Nevertheless, Fort Belvoir should continue to contribute to the nation's defense ss it has for the (ast eighty yesrs,

Criterion C .

The Fort Selvoir Historic District embodies & duality of architectural and city planmning elements, the first formsl and
academic, the other vernacular snd utilitarian, Public outcry over the state of military housing, together with the incressed
prestige of the installation, resulted in the creation of the formal Besux Arts plan with the Long Perede Ground snd its envirors
and the stately Colonial Revival architecture of the imposing brick buildings which surround it. The pian and layout is » fine
example of early-twentieth-century planning that was in keeping with the City desutiful movement of the time. During this ers,
designs focused on balanced schemes and carefully planned building layouts, that usually were executed by landscape architects snd

architects in concert.

Fort Balvoir's tayout of the Long Parsde Ground snd quadrengle followed contemporary plamning snd duim.p\ilow#w. s
described by Lt. H.B. Nurse in 1928 (Nurse 1928). His view for post plamning would incorporste specific "lawve® mr:-ludim “nity,
"Consonance in Design,* "Naturai Beauty,” and "Salance.® Nurse belisved that srily posts should have a “comprehensive plan of
development,” as evidenced st Fort Selvoir, and, viewing the entirety ss an organism, its “various parts...(should] radiste from or
otherwise refer back to common centers.” These dicts are evidenced at the rectangular persde ground located nesr the center of the
South Post, where it is surrounded by Colonial Revival byildings and forms the major design focus of the post. This formmi compl ex
includes three adjacent buildings designed by Willism |. Deming: Abbot Hall, the Post Hesdguartars (Building No. 269), which is
flanked by Williams and Thayer Wells (Buildings #2688 snd 270). The building composition, centering on the more eisborste Abbot
Hall, defines the east side of the Long Parsde Ground and serves as the symbolic and visual focus of the post. R

The Essayons Theater snd Administrative Suilding also exemplifies Nurse's call for the sttention to planning snd unified
design that is charscteristic of Fort Belvoir's central core. Perhaps in o similsr vein, the chapel was placed on the parade ground
inmediately south of the Post Hesdguarters complex. Although this building, constructed from standard silitary plnp st replicated
at many other Army installations, is not in itself sn architecturally significant structure, the decision to place it st the formal
core of the fort is historically important because it illustrates the Arwy's vision of its commnity as well as the central place
cccupied by religion in contemporsry American culture. Other posts of the period, including Fort Sem Houston, Texas, and Fort
Oevens, Wassachusetts, incorporats the Amsrican City Seautifut planning phitcsophies for arwy posts.

of primary architectursi significence is the splendidly conceived senior officers housing sres, » 19308 development
attractively L#id out with substantial Colonisl Revival-style residences. It is situated st the southesstern tip of the penirsula
on which Fort Belvoir Lies. The frreguiar topography of the bluffs inspired a curvilinesr plan of considersble bngutyg reminiscent
of the finest garden suburbs. The Officer's Club, built in 1934, is stylisticslly reminiscent of Mount vVernon, which is located
nearty to the NOFTH. AN elegant two-story portico scross the front suggests an attempt to harmonize with local architectursi
traditions, slthough it is compatible with the cremainder af this development.

Fort Belvoir also employed standerdized design models for many of its buildings. The construction of residentisl huin_'
on military bases has undergone repested attempts at stasnderdization since the Civil War. A study of standardization practices in
residential housing documented the trends in standardization. Prior to World War [I, three distinct periods vere identified:
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Period 1, 1844-1890; Period 11, 1890-1917; Period [11, 1917-1040, which spplies €o the majority ot structures st Fort Belvair, The
initial phase of construction at Fort Selvoir, which is pooriy represented in the buildir_us stat)dfnu today, began in resction to the
reed tor g large training facility during world war [. The comstruction during the wartime period was not designed to be

permanent, and ss such did mot fall within the purview of that study.

By 1926, the living conditions at the nation's military instailations wers reaching a critical state of decay. In Merch
1926, Comgress enacted Public Law No. 45, which authorized the saie of forty-thres military instailations and directed that the
money received by piaced within a Military Post Construction Fund for the construction of permanent structures at the remeining
bases. Once operational, the fund was used to repiace both residential and utilitlnm.stru:turu. Commtruction began in the
northern bases, where climetic conditions warranted inmediste sttention. The funds derived from the sale of these beses, as weil
as sdditionsl funds appropriated from Congress, allowed s restructuring of the U.S. Army. Fort Belvoir received $5000,000 for the
construction of berracks. They were successfully completed by the projected date of July 2, 1923. The following yesr,
appropriations were made for the 1929 Housing Program, atlowing for the funding of $4,708,0000 for projecta on thirteen bases, and
Fort Belvoir received additionat allocations through 1930.

Because of the volume and variety of structures built during the Depressien, it was necesssry to provide standardized plans
for their corstruction, Throughout the meetings of the Sub-committee on Military Affairs, Doth congressmen and Army ofticials
expressed & concern that the plane that would be developed respond appropristely to the different climatic conditions and
architectursl styles of the country. A great desi of sttention uss given to the plamning of the redesigned posts, with the
objective that they form “one great social ergenization," considered to be more advantsgeous for the training and continued
existence of trocps on an installation. Therefore, proven spprosches to city plamning were utilized in the reconstruction of the

military posts, including Fort Belvoir.

In opposition to standardized construction plans, the Army slso desired to sllow for differences in facade types, to sllow
for regional architectural traditions to ba mimicked, snd to allow for the effective use of locally avatlsble ngorial. Two primsry
style, Georgian and Spenish Mission, were sdapted for most of the residentisi conetruction. However, Fort Seivoir and Bolling Field
utilized a Mount Yernon style with both a garden front and an entrance front.

; : : xiventages of
Esrly in the planning of standardized spprosches to residentisl construction, a controversy arose over the
bungaiow style, single family residences. During that period, Fort Belvoir's NCD buiiding style "NCO-11* was chosen ss one of the
three principal styte slong with the Fort Siiss type (NCO-10) and the Fort Mormouth type (NCO-9).

The entrance of U.S. Armed Forces in World War |1 effectively caused the cessation of permanent construction for o time,
ard this period of Fort Belvoir's military structures ends with the Aserican invoivemsnt in Worid War II,

The design of Fort Belvoir included adwinistrative and service structures related to its 1mtru:trpml and military
proposes as well as housing units, medicel fecilities and schools for children of military poﬂml. Social and refrntiann
centars for officers and soldiers are inctuded in the Layout of the historic post. Appropriately, both the Officers' and ¥CO clubs
serve as architectural foci for their respective housing clusters. Architectural charsctaristics of the houses, including size,
scals, and Level of detailing, ss well as their distribution end Layout, reflect the hiersrchy among officers md_uln. The Ar'-w
Materiel Commending Officer's Quarters occupies s commending position among the senior officers’ houses. .Tho senior afficers
houses are in turn grander in size and conception than the junior officers' residences. The latter live in the formerly temporary
Nousing situated on the ridge above Dogue Creek. Officars' housing is separated from NCO housing, which although Largely conceived

within the same colonial Revival design idiam, is smsller and Less sisborsts.

The structures included in the Fort Belvoir Nistoric District iliustrate the history of the post and signify the Arw‘hl
policy of constructing its own set of facilities to meet the needs of ity Lsrgely seif-contained commnity. ln this regard, the
exemplitication of the ides of the military commnity thet {s embodied by the Fort Selvoir Historic District transcencs :M post
and possesses Army-wide significance. Further evidence of Arwy-wide significance is lnqiutad by the use of stand:;d [} lffll':
plans for the construction of N|CO and Officars’ housing and by the testing of Army housing prototypes such as the Q:E-Cﬁt ouse
and the U.S. Army Packege Powar Reactor (tes Thermo-Con House and U.3. Army Peckage Power fsacter nominations) st the irstailation
(the latter two properties are not included within the Historic District boundariest.

Through its architecture, the Fort Balvoir Historic District reflects the gracusl evolution of the post from a temporary

ini i i finaily, to an organtcaily arranged
training camp, formally begun in 1917 during worid Ver |, to s formsl Colonial Revival post, and ' j
instailation inrm the present time, its structures iLiustrate s lLang-terw trend towerd permsnence snd quelity in the design and

construction of military architecture snd anticipates by nesrly two decades the appesrsnce of similarty permansnt buildings at most
army posts.

e
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Jerbal Boundary llescription

From the iiitersection of Belvoir Rosd snd 18th Street the boundary extends ss follows: beginning at Belvoir Road and
traveiing westeriy on 18th Street to the intersection with Middieton Rosd, them turning northerly to the service rosd behind the
buildings on the rmorth side of 18th Street, west on the service road to Gunston Road, and northerly on Gunston Road for about 450
fest, then turning esst aiong the south side of Building #191 for 150 feet and then north to 16th Street. Procesding east on 16th
Street to the east side of Vater Storage Tank #1838, north 200 fest on the east side of #1383 and then westerly 250 feet and northerty
to 15th Street. West on 15th Street to Guneton Road, south on Gunston Road to 16th Street and west on 16th Street to the east side
of Warehouse #1145, then northerly aiong the east side of Warehouses #1145 to 1141 and east on the north side of Building #1148 to
Gunston Road. Nerth on Guneton ftoad for 100 feet and then west, to the south of Building #1150, to warshouse #1140 and northerly
along the east side of that and Warehouse #1139, west slong the north side and south siong the west side of Yarehouse #1139,
Continuing south along the Line of Warehouses and the railrosd tracks to a point 125 feet north of 16th Street and west 200 fest and
south on the west side of Quilding #1126 to 16th Street. East on 156th Street to just sast of Suliding #1953 and then south
paralieling Gunston Roasd to the service rosd running behind Gerber Yillage lots on the west side of Gunston Road, snd then south
atong the service road to 213t Strest. East on 218t Street to the west side of Building #1646 and south of that ard Building #142 to
a {ine west of Building #173 ruwming south to 23rd Strest on the esst side of Indoor Swimming Pool #182. East on 23rd Street to
Middleton Rcad end north on Middieton Rosd to the north sice of Building #223, esst on the north side of that building to the west
side of Building #7715 and north to 21st Street. East on that street te Bixby Road, and south on Bixby Road to Z3rd Street and
crossing 23rd Street along the west side of building #503 snd along the south side of that and the adjscunt buildings essterly
crossing Forney Loop to a point about 175 feet west of Belvoir Drive. Then parallel to Belvoir Orive st a distance of 173 feet west
of the roadwsy to inciude tha buildings on the weat side of it and icoping around counterctockwise starting to the west to include

all of Fairfax Orive, the southesst side lots on Woodlawn Drive, esst sround Shulz Circle, then northwest to inciude (ots on the
Then north east on Comstock Road for 250

northesst side of Meson Orive up to the intersection of Beiveir Drive and Comstock Road.
feet srd then north to the resr of Building #2186 end esst again to Flagger foad. Continuing around Flagpir Road to Mount Vernon
Road and up Mount Vernon Roed to the service road leading behind the lots on the southeast side of that ruad to the intersection
With Jadwin Loop snd Mount Vernon Road. Southwest on Mount Yernon Road to the intersection with Kuhn Road and North on Kuhn fRosd ta
18th Street and west on 18th Street to the interssction with Belvoir Road and the plece of the beginmning.

3oundary Justification

The aforementioned acreage of the Fort Belvoir South Post property that inciudes military housing as well as adliniltra_tivo,
educationsi, utititarisn and all functional aress and buildings and structures, including the persde grounds, that are historically
significant to the property, meintsin historic integrity, and convey the property's historic setting are Leing nominated for the
National Register. The bourndaries fallow complex and irreguisr Lines to eliminate later ingrusions that do not fit within the
historic context of the nosminetion.
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VIEW OF: ‘"Tﬁ'd‘!ﬁi" Commanding Officer's Quarters
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VIEW OF: Typical Senior Qfficer's Nousing
NEG. WO.: 15022
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DATE: 12/93

WEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library

VIEW OF: Typical Senior Officer's Housing
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NEGATIVE FILED: vA State Library

VIEW OF: Typical Senior Officer's Housing
NEG. NO.: 10022
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CREDIT:Sheryl Hack/Judith Rosentel
DATE:4/92

NEGATIVE FILED:vA State Library
VIEW OF: MacKenZie Hall

NEG. NO.: 15022
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CREDIT:Sharyl Yack/Judith Rosentel
DATE :4/92

NEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library
VIEW OF :Typi NECG Housing

NEG. NO.: ng
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CREDIT:Sheryl Hack/Judith Rosentel
OATE: &/92

NEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library
VIEW OF: Building 171

NEG. NO.: 022
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NEGATIVE FILED:VA State Librasry
VIEW OF:Fo 0 Club, Bldg 84
NEG. NO.: ’Tﬁé‘%z
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CREDIT:Marge Green/ Richard L. Green
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NEGATIVE FILED:VA State Library
VIEW OF: MacArthur Hsll

NEG. ¥0.: 15022
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CREDIT:Marge Green/ Richard L. Green
DATE:12/93

NEGATIVE FILED:VA State Library

VIEW OF:Typical_rear view of Bldgs. #203-213
NEG. N0.: 15022
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CREDIT:Wayne Meilin/Judith Roesntel
OATE: 4/92

NEGATIVE FILED:VA State Library
VIEW OF:FLagler Hall, 3ldg.#216
NEG. NO.: 15022

PHOTO _11_ of _21_

CREDIT:Wayne Mellin/Judith Rossntel

DATE: 4/92 .
NEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library

VIEW OF: Moryment 1o the Cold War Dead
NEG. NO.: Y
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CREDIT:Sheryl Hack/Jjudith Rosentel
DATE:4/92

NEGATIVE FILED:VA State Library
VIEW OF :E£38a Theater, Blog. #219
NEG. NO.: 22

PHOTO _13_ of _21_

CREDIT:Marge Greeny/ Richard L. Green
DATE:12/93

MEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library
VIEW OF:Main Post Otfice, Blog.s2\9
NEG. NO.: 15022
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CREDIT:Wayne Mellin/Jud{th Roesntel
DATE: 4/92

NEGATIVE FILED: YA State Library
VIEW OF:Thayer Hall, Bidg. # 270
NEG, NO.: 15022

PNOTO _16_ of _20_

CRED1T :Wayne Meliin/iudith Roesntel
DATE: 4/92
NEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library

VIEW OF: A , Bldg #269
NEG. NO.: oy,
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CREDIT:Sheryl Hack/Judith Rosentel
OATE: 4/92

NEGATIVE FiLED: VA State Library
VIEM OF: Fairfs Cglptl. 8ldg. #T-435
NEG. NO.: 1502

PHOTO _18_ of _21_

CREDIT:Sheryl Hack/Judith Rosentel
JATE: 4/92

NEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library
YIEW QF: Typical Bldgs #T436-441
NEG. NO.: 15022

PROTO _19_ of _21_

CREDIT:Wayne Mellin/Judith Roesntet
CATE: 4/92

NEGATIVE FILED: VA State Library
V1EW OF; War ldgs. #T1139-1141
NEG. NO.: fmz’
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CREDIT:Sharyl Hack/Judith Rosentel
DATE: 4/92

NEGATIVE FILED: VA State \ibrary

VIEW OF :Transformer Vault, Bldg. #1150A
WEG., NO.: 15022

PHOTO _21_ of _21_
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HISTORIC DISTRICT BUILDINGS LIST

Bldg # Date Bldg Name and Description

1 1935 Army Materiel Commanding Officer’s Quarters
2 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing

3 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing

4 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing

5 1935 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing

6 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing

7 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
7A 1935 Transformer, Qrts. 7 & 8

8 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing

9 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
10 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
11 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
12 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
13 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
14 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
15 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
15A 1950 Tennis Courts - Noncontributing

15B 1935 Transformer, Qrts, 16 & 17

16 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
17 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
18 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
19 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
20 1934 MacKenzie Hall Officers Club Original Officers Open Mess
21 1935 Mason Drive Officer Family Housing

22 1934 Mason Drive Officer Family Housing '

213 1935 Mason Drive Officer Family Housing



25
26
27
28
29
30
31
12
33
33A
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48

49

Date

1934 Mason Drive Officer Family

1934
1934
1935
1935
1934
1935
1224
1935
1934
1943
1934
1§35
1934
1935
1935
1934
1934
1935
1934
1935
1935
1934
1935
1834
1935

1934

Bldg Name and Description

Mascon
Mason
Mason
Mason
Mason
Mason
Mason
Mason

Mason

Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive

Drive

Transformer

Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir

Belvoir

Drive
Drive
Drive

Drive

Drive

Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive

Drive

Oofficer’
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer

Officer

Officer Family
Officer Family

Officer Family

officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer

Officer

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Housiﬁg
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing



Bldg # Date
50 1935
51 1934
51A 1935
52 1934
53 1934
54 1934
55 1934
56 1934
57 1934
58 1934
59 1934
60 1934
€7 1935
€8 1935
68A 1549
73 1949
101 1930
102 1930
103 1930
104 1930
105 1930
106 1930
107 1930
108 1930
109 1830
110 1930
110A 1935

1

Name an

Des

tion

Belvoir Drive Officer Family Housing

Belvoir Drive Officer Family

Transformer

Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Patrick

Patrick

Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Road

Road

Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officers

Officers

Transformer Station -

Family
Family
Family
Fahily
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

Quarters

Quarters

Noncontributing

Detached Garage - Noncontributing

Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston

Gunston

Road NCO Family

Road
Road
Road
Road
Road
Road
Road
Road

Road

Transformer,

NCO

NCO

RCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

RCO

NCO

Qtrs.

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

110

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing



Bldg #
111

112
114
115
11e
117
118
118
120
120A
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136

136A

Date
1830
1930
1931
1930
1931
1930
1930
1930
1930
1935
1930
1930
1930
1930
1930
1931
1931
1931
1931
1931
1931
1831
1931
1931
1931
1931

1935

Bldg Name and Description

Gunston Road NCO Family Housing

Gunston Road NCO Family Housing

20th Street NCO Family Housing

Gunston Road NCO Family Housing

19th Street NCO Family Housing

Gunston

Gunston Road

Gunston

Gunston

Transformer,

Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston

Gunston

Road

Road
Road
Qrt
Road NCO
Road NCO
Road NCO
Road
Road NCO
Road NCO

Rocad NCO

NCO

isth
18th
18th
18th
18th
18th
1gth
i18th

18th

Transformer Qrts.

s.
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Street NCO Family

Street
Street
Street
Street
Street
Street
Street

Street

NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO

NCO

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

136 &

NCO Family Housing
NCO Family Housing
NCO Family Housing
NCO Family Housing

120 & 122

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

138



138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
155
157
157A
159
161
162
163
164
165

166

Date

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1831

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1931

1935

1931

1931

1934

1931

1934

1831

1938

Bldg Name and Description
18th Street NCO Family Housing

18th Street NCO

18th Street NCO

18th Street NCO

18th Street NCO

19th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
15th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
19th/20th Street
15th/20th Street

19th/20th Street

Family Housing

Family Housing

Family Housing

Family Housing

NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO
NCO

NCO

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

21st Street NCO Family
21st Street NCO Family
Transformer Qtrs 157

21st Street NCO Family
21st Street NCO Family
21st Street NCO Family
21st Street NCO Family
21lst Street NCO Family

21st Street NCO Family

Middleton Road NCO Family Housing

Housing

Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing



167
168
189
170
171
173
174
175
176
177
178
184
188
191
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213

216

1939

1939

1939

1939

1939

1940

1240

1940

1940

1940

1940

1939

1918

1934

1928

1928

1928

1928

1928

1928

1929

1929

1929

1934

1940

1940

1940

1932

Bldg Name and Description
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing

Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Original NCO Club (Club 7, 8, 9)
Water Storage Tank

Fire Station, Facilty Engineer Facility
Administration

MacArthur Hall (Defence Systems Management College}
Barracks w/o Mess

General Instruction Building
General Instruction Building
Barracks w/o Mess

General Instruction Building
Barracks w/o Mess

General Instruction Building
Barracks w/o Mess

Barracks w/o Mess

Barracks w/o Mess

Barracks w/o Mess

Flagler Hall (Administrative, Former Hospital)



Bldg #
216A

217
218
219
226
§-231
235
245
246
256
257
258
268
269
270
T-435
T-436
T-437
T-438
T-439
T-440
T-441
443-446
T-498A
500
500A
501

502

Date
1976
1932
1967
1931
1957
1968
1965
1950
1951
1935
1935
1935
1935
1935
1935
1941
1921
1921
1521
1921
1921
1921
1940
1955
1534
1935
1934

1934

dg Name and Description
Flagpole - Noncontributing

Detached Garage
Monument to the Cold War Dead - Noncontributing
Essayons Theater and Administration
Battalion Headguarters -~ Noncontributing
Consolidated Mess #1 - Noncontributing
Battalion Headquarters - Noncontributing
Baseball Field - Noncontributing
Commumications Electronics Building -~ Noncontributing
Main Post Office
Hill Hall - Judge Advocate’s Office (Orig Childrens Sch)
Administrative Offices General Purpose (Original PX)
Williams Hall - Printing Facility
Abbott Hall - Post Headguarters
Thayer Hall - General Instruction
Fairfax Chapel
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Jadwin Loop Officers Family Housing
Detached Garages
Ballfields (DYA) - Noncontributing
23rd Street Housing
Transformer Vault
23rd Street Housing

23rd Street Housing



503
1124
T-1139
T-1140
T-1141
T-1142
T-1143
T-1144
T-1145
1150
1150Aa
1156
1157

1158

Date
1934
1934
1917
1917
1917
1917
1917
1917
1917

1934

e

23rd Street Housing

Gasoline Station

General
General
General
General
General
General

General

Purpose
Purpose
Purpose
Purpose
Purpose
Purpose

Purpose

Warehouse
Warehouse
Warehouse
Warehouse
Warehouse
Warehouse

Warehouse

PX Administration

Transformer Vault - 1935

1935 Substation

1929 Stand-By Generator

1935 Electric Storage




HISTORIC DISTRICT BUILDINGS LIST

Bldg # Date Bldg Name and Description
1 1935 Army Materiel Commanding Officer’s Quarters
2 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing
3 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing
4 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing
5 1935 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing
6 1934 Fairfax Drive Officer Family Housing
7 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
TA 1935 Transformer, Qrts. 7 & 8
8 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
g 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
10 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
11 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
12 1935 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
13 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
14 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
15 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
15A 1950 Tennis Courts - Noncontributing
15B 1935 Transformer, Qrts. 16 & 17
16 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
17 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
18 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
19 1934 Woodlawn Drive Officer Family Housing
20 1934 MacKenzie Hall Officers Club Original Officers Open Mess
21 1935 Mason Drive Officer Family Housing
22 1934 Mason Drive Officer Family Housing ‘

23 1935 Mason Drive Officer Family Housing



Bldg #
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
333
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48

49

1934
1934
1934
1935
1935
1934
1835
1934
1935
1934
1943
1934
1535
1934
1935
1935
1934
1934
1935
1934
1935
1935
1934
1935
1934
1935

1934

Bldg Name and Description

Mason Drive Officer Family

Mason Drive
Mason Drive
Mason Drive
Mason Drive
Mason Drive
Mascon Drive
Mason Drive
Mason Drive

Mason Drive

Officer
Officer

officer

Family
Family

Family

Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

Transformer

Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir
Belvoir

Belvoir

Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive

Drivg

officer
officer
Officer
officer
officer

Officer

Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Oofficer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer

Officer

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing



Bldg # Date
50 1935
81 1934
S1A 1935
52 1934
53 1934
54 1934
55 1934
56 1934
57 1934
58 1934
59 1934
60 1934
67 1935
68 1935
68A 1949
73 1949
101 1930
‘102 1930
103 1930
104 1930
105 1930
106 1930
107 1930
108 1930
109 1930
110 1930
110A 1935

Bldg Name and Description

Belvoir Drive Officer

Belvoir Drive Officer

Transformer

Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fajirfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Fairfax
Patrick

Patrick

Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Drive
Read

Road

Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officer
Officers

Officers

Transformer Station -

Family Housing

Family

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

Housing

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

Quarters

Quarters

Noncontributing

Detached Garage - Noncontributing

Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston

Gunston

Road
Road
Road
Road
Road
Road
Road
Road
Road

Road

Transformer,

NCO

Family Housing

NCO
NCO
NCO

NCO

RCO-

NCO
NCO
NCO

NCO

Qtrs.

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

110

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing



Bidg # Date
111 1930
112 1930
114 1931
115 1930
116 1931
117 1930
118 1930
119 , 19230
120 1930
©120A 1935
121 1930
122 1830
123 1930
124 1930
125 1830
126 1931
127 1931
128 1931
129 1931
130 1931
131 1931
132 1931
133 1931
134 1931
135 1931
136 1931
136A 1935

Bldg Name and Description
Gunston Road NCO Family Housing

Gunston Road NCO Family Housing

20th Street NCO Family Housing

Gunston Road NCO Family Housing

19th Street NCO Family Housing

Gunston
Gunston
Gunston

Gunston

Transformer,

Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston
Gunston

Gunston

Road
Road
Road
Road
Qrt
Road NCO
Road NCO
Road NCO
Road
Road NcCO
Road NCO

Road NCO

NCO

S.
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Family

NCO Family Housing
NCO Family Housing
NCO Family Housing
NCO Family Housing

120 & 122

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

18th
18th
18th
18th
18th
igth
18th
18th

18th

Street
Street
Street
Street
Street
Street
Street
Street

Street

Transformer

NCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

NCO

Family
Fanmily
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Fanily

Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Housing

Qrts. 136 & 138



Bldg # Date Bldg Name and Description

137 1931 18th Street NCO Family Housing
138 1931 18th Street NCO Family Housing

138 1931 18th Street NCO Family Housing

140 1931 18th Street NCO Family Housing

141 1931 18th Street NCO Family Housing

142 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
143 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
144 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
145 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
146 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
147 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
148 1831 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
149 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
.150 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
151 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
152 1931 19th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
153 1931 1%th/20th Street NCO Family Housing
155 1931 21st Street NCO Family Housing

157 1931 21st Street NCO Family Housing

157A 1935 Transformer Qtrs 157

159 1931 21st Street NCO Family Housing

161 1931 21st Street NCO Family Housing

162 1934 21st Street NCO Family Housing

163 1931 21st Street NCO Family Housing

‘164 1934 21st Street NCO Family Housing

165 1931 21st Street NCO Family Housing

166 1939 Middleton Road NCO Family Housing



Bldg #
167
168
169
170
171
173
174
175
176
177
178
184
188
191
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213

216

1339

1939

1939

1939

1939

1940

1940

. 1940

1940

1940

1940

1939

1918

1934

1928

1928

1928

1928

1928

1928

1929

1929

1929

1934

1940

1940

1940

1932

Bld ame and Descripti
Middleton Road NCO Family Housiﬂé
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Middleton Road NCO Family Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Detached Garage for NCO Housing
Original NCO Club (Club 7, 8, 9)
Water Storage Tank
Fire Station, Facilty Engineer Facility
Administration
MacArthur Hall (Defence Systems Management College)
Barracks w/o Mess
General Instruction Building
General Instruction Building
Barracks w/o Mess
General Instruction Building
Barracks w/o Mess
General Instruction Building
Barracks w/o Mess
Barracks w/o Mess
Barracks w/o Mess
Barracks w/o Mess

Flagler Hall (Administrative, Former Hospital)



Bldg # Date

216A 1976
217 1932
218 1967
219 1931

226 1957
5-231 1968
235 1965
245 1950
246 1951
256 1935
257 1935
258 1935
268 1935
269 1935
270 1935
T-435 1941
T-436 1921
T-437 1921
T-438 1921
T-439 1921
-T—440 1921
T-441 1921
443-446 1940
T-498A 1955
500 1934
500A 1935
501 1934

502 1934

ldg Name and Desc tio

Flagpole - Noncontributing

Detached Garage

Monument to the Cold War Dead - Noncontributing
Essayons Theater and Administration

Battalion Headquarters - Nomcontributing

Consolidated Mess #1 - Noncontributing

Battalion Headquarters - Noncontributing

Baseball Field - Noncontributing

Commumications Electronics Building - Noncontributing
Main Post Office
Hill Hall - Judge Advocate’s Office (Orig Childrens Sch)
Administrative Offices General Purpose (Original PX}
Williams Hall - Printing Facility
Abbott Hall - Post Headquarters
Thayer Hall - General Instruction
Fairfax Chapel
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Mt. Vernon Road Officer Family Housing
Jadwin Loop Officers Family Housing
Detached Garages

Ballfields (DYA) - Noncontributing
23rd Street Housing
Transformer Vault

23rd Street Housing

23rd Street Housing



Bldg #
503
1124
T-1139
T-1140
T-1141
T-1142
T-1143
T-1144
T-1145
1150
1150A
1156
1157

1158

Date
1934

1934
1917
1917
1917
1917

1917

1917

1917

1934

Name and Descripti
23rd Street Housing

Gasoline Station

General Purpose Warehouse
General Purpose Warehouse
General Purpose Warehouse
General Purpose Warehouse
General Purpose Warehouse
General Purpose Warehouse
General Purpose Warehouse

PX Administration

Transformer Vault - 1935

1935

1929

1935

Substation
Stand-By Generator

Electric Storage
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Feet Meters
15000~

1 4500
14000—]

31— 4000
13000 —3
1ow—

3500
11000 —i_

1000

Meters

3048

914
1.2192
15240
18288
21336
24384
27432
3.0480





